SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 22, 2015
1:36 p.m

1: 36: 02 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Senator John Coghill, Senator Cathy
G essel, Representative Sam Kito; Representative Andy
Josephson; Representative Cathy Gessel; Representative
Tamm e W/ son, Representative Les Gara David Teal,
D rector, Legi slative Finance Division; Jerry Burnett,
Deputy Conm ssioner, Treasury Division, Department  of

Revenue; Rob Carpenter, Budget Analyst, Legislative Finance
Di vi si on;

SUMVARY

NPRESENTATI ON: ALASKA' S FISCAL CRI SIS

1: 37: 00 PM

DAVI D  TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SI ON,
explained that he wuld be discussing Al aska's fiscal
crisis. He referred to the first graph on page 1, which
showed a |ine graph; the blue line represented unrestricted



general funds, the red line represented expenditures. He
said that the bar graph bel ow showed the reserves bal ance
into 2025. He stated that the nobdel was currently set at
the fall forecast, and at the Senate budget. He related
that the graphs did not illustrate an unmanageable fi scal
crisis. He pointed out to the commttee that the billion
dol l ar gaps in the budget had been cl osed due to the budget
recently passed by the Senate. He relayed that the figures
were roughly $1 mllion below the governor's Decenber 15th
budget .

1:39: 26 PM

M. Teal presented Slide 2, "Figure 1, Forecast of Total
UGF Revenue - Fall 2014 vs. March 2015. He noted that the
blue line indicated the fall forecast and the red Iline
represented the spring forecast. In Mirch the revised
forecast dropped approximately $400 mllion in FY 15,
stayed the same for FY 16, and then the gap closed in FY
20.

1: 40: 06 PM

M. Teal turned to Slide 3, which illustrated that at the
trajectory on Slide 2, the reserves were forecasted to be
used up by 2022. He clarified that he was speaking of the
constitutional budget reserve fund (CBR) and the statutory
budget reserve fund (SBR).

1:40: 41 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked what had changed from Slide 1 to Slide
3.

M. Teal explained that the fall forecast had been repl aced
with the spring forecast on Slide 3.

1:41: 05 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for the current price per barrel
of oil. She queried the price points per barrel of Al aska
North Sl ope (ANS) as projected past 2019.

M. Teal noved to Slide 4, "Figure 2. Al aska Unrestricted
Ceneral Fund Reserve (Left Axis) and Average ANS Price\ bbl
(Right Axis)". He stated that the projected price was in
the md-60"s, rising to $130 by 2023. He said that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



probl em was that the spring forecast, despite its downward
revision, remained optimstic. He relayed that the new
forecast listed prices never before seen. He opined that
not only did the slide illustrate a rapid recovery in
price, it went up beyond the highest average price the
state had experienced.

1: 42: 42 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked for explanation on how the price
ranges were determ ned.

M. Teal explained that Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
produced the forecast, and that nmany sat in on the
forecasting, including Legislative Finance D vision. He
said that everyone involved turned in their best guess and
then left it to DOR to adjust the nunbers as necessary
before releasing the forecast. He stated that the forecast
was DOR s best guess at oil price and oil production.

1:44: 06 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered why, historically, the state
had been above industry estimates for oil prices.

1:44: 42 PM

JERRY BURNETT, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, TREASURY DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, confirmed that Department  of
Adm nistration used a variety of nodels and sources to
formulate the forecast. He continued that the estimates
were derived by the departnent's economc research group
with input fromthe conm ssioner and tax director, and were
simlar to estimates from a nunber of outside sources. He
contended that the departnent's estimates generally
reflected industry estimates for oil prices.

1:46: 44 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon whether it was easier to project nore
accurate nunbers closer to real time rather than far into
the future.

M. Burnett replied that the departnent was nuch better a
predicting the nunbers for the short run instead of the
long run. He said that sort range projections tended to be
consistent with the NYMEX strip and other market forces,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



whereas the future projections were based on an econom c
forecast over which no one had control.

1:47:52 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche stated that it seenmed that there was a
| evel of conservatismlacking fromthe forecasts.

M. Burnett comented that over the |ast several years
there was additional conservatismbuilt into the production
forecast. He reiterated the difficulty in projecting far
into the future. He directed commttee attention to Slide
4, which he believed was a good linear interpolation of
where the prices were, conpared to what was forecasted.

1: 49: 26 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the state had shifted to a
different type of forecasting prior to 1999.

M. Burnett said he could not speak to any change that had
been made. He shared that the departnment engaged in a range
of forecasts and probability levels resulting in a point
price forecast for the Revenue Sources Book.

1: 50: 28 PM

Co-Chair Kelly comented that the departnent had done a
fine job at forecasting a volatile commobdity. He countered
that the recent projections were too optimstic, given the
current state of the market.

1:51:10 PM

Senator Dunleavy reiterated Co-Chair Kelly's coments about
the overly optimstic oil prices wused in the budget
proj ections.

1:51: 48 PM

Co-Chair Kelly thought as a product of the current neeting,
the commttee would further understand the forecast node
and how different prices and different production |evels
would affect the noney available for state operating
expendi t ur es.

1:52: 21 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



M. Teal referred back to Slide 4. He said that the
di fference between the revenue line and the price line was

not an error; it illustrated that price and revenue
correlated. He relayed that when the price was |ow, but
production was high, the state still generated significant

revenue. He asserted that it would not matter what the
price was if there were little production. He said that,
taking the DOR projection as a given variable, determning
the nost attractive price was inpossible. He felt that the
advantage of the forecast nodel was that the overly
optimstic revenue forecast could be changed to reflect a
nore conservative price.

1:54: 40 PM

M. Teal referred back to Slide 3, and adjusted the graph
based on a hypothetical scenario of a $70 price per barre
of oil. He pointed out that the fiscal crisis would be
sol ved under the budget that the Senate passed depending
what ever price you chose for the projection

1:55: 48 PM

Co- Chair WMacKi nnon asked what the forecast would |ook |ike
using the current price of $65 p/bbl.

M. Teal input the nunber and pointed out that the graph
did not register a great deal of change.

1:56: 45 PM

M. Teal referred to a Fiscal Sensitivity Chart (copy not
on file). He explained that the revenue did not respond
significantly until prices reached above $80 p/ bbl.

1:57: 51 PM

Senator Bishop queried the nunber of barrels of oil
produced daily in the state.

M. Teal responded that production was at approxi mately 500
p/ bbl .

1:58: 10 PM

Senator Meyer stated that he had heard runors concerning
i ncreased | evels of production. He thought that it would be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



interesting to see what would happen when production
increased. He held high hopes that production would
i ncrease before the price increased.

M. Teal said that he had no ability to predict the future;
DOR crafted the production forecast based on field by field
anal ysis, the Legislative Finance Division (LFD) did not
have any data that would allow for the questioning of the
production forecast. He asserted that price was really
anybody's guess; but if the priced remained where it was,
even if production were to be substantially increased,
there was not nuch per barrel at the current price. He
reiterated that at current prices the state was not nmaking
much revenue.

1: 59: 55 PM

Senat or Meyer reflected that the current problem mrrored
financial issues from the late 1980's, except back then
production was over a mllion barrels per day. He asserted
t hat production mattered a | ot.

M. Teal said that the rule of thunb in the 1980's was that
for every $1 change in the price of oil, the change in
revenue was approximtely $150 mllion. He said that now
for every $1 change in the price of oil, the state saw
roughly $20 million. He contended that the difference was
significant.

2: 00: 59 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche referred back to the sensitivity chart.
He asked why the incline increased so dramatically at $80
p/ bbl .

M. Teal responded that that was how the production tax was
designed. He added that the chart reflected the revenue at
vari ous prices.

2:01:44 PM

M. Teal referred back to Slide 3, and the hypothetical
scenario of oil priced at $70 per barrel. He said that were
the price to be at $70, there should be concern about a
fiscal crisis because the fiscal gap would bur reserves
rapidly. He stated that things could be done to ease the
fiscal gap; the revenue curve could be increased, or the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



expenditure curve could be decreased - if they coincided
the budget would balance. He understood that sone m ght
| abel the current climte and Expenditure Crisis".

2: 03: 09 PM

Senat or Hof f man understood that at $70 per barrel, reserves
woul d be depleted by FY 18. He asked by how nuch the state
woul d be short in FY 18 to neeting a bal ance budget.

M. Teal stated the state would be short approximtely $3
billion dollars.

M. Teal explained that at $70 p/bbl, after the budget that
the Senate passed in FY 16, the fiscal climte would be
flat; no gromh, no decline. He said that the state could
not operate at the deficit projected using those nunbers.
He said that there would be $6 billion in reserves that
woul d be accessible, but they would only last for 2 years.

2:05: 02 PM

M. Teal summarized that the |egislature needed to decide
whet her the expenditures |ine decreased or the revenue side
i ncreased.

2:05:48 PM

M. Teal presented Slide 5, "Figure 3. Per Capita
Unrestricted General Fund Revenue and Budget History
Adjusted for Inflation'. He said that the slide reflected
real per capita spending. In FY 16 the state spent roughly
$5000 per person, which was lower than alnost any tine in
the past 40 years. He asserted that the |egislature had not
"spent their way into the problent.

2:07:25 PM

Senator Bishop asked whether part of the reason that
departnmental budgets had grown was because of deferred
mai nt enance.

M. Teal stated that deferred maintenance was expensive to
avoid, and that funding could be put into the capital and
t he operating budgets. He said that budget growth was due
to deferred maintenance and unnet needs in the operating
budget .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



2:09:36 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked for a conparison of the fiscal
crisis in the 1980's versus the current clinate.

M. Teal surmi sed that w thout savings, there is no choice
but to cut expenditures. He said that in 1991, the CBR was
established to act as a shock absorber for budget
reductions. He relayed that sonme would argue that the
reserve had not acted as was intended because court cases
and various interpretations had made it difficult to
access.

2:11: 37 PM
AT EASE

2:12: 32 PM
RECONVENED

M. Teal discussed slide 6, "Figure 4. Cost Drivers--Agency
Qperations Contribution to Budget |ncreases FYO6 to FY15 ($
mllions) $1.9 Billion Total UGF Increase". He related that
a comon question was what had caused the growmh in state
expenditures. He noted that the chart illustrated the 4
primary budget drivers; K-12 Education, Medicaid, Salaries
and Benefits, and O her Program Expansi on.

2:13: 12 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked how much debt service was inside
of the 34 percent for Oher Program Expansi on.

M. Teal explained that the slide was sinply agency
operations and did not include debt service. He added that
debt service was classified statewi de and was approxi mately
$230 million per year; while debt service had grown over

the years it was still too small a driver to be considered.
He concluded that sonme of the driver depended on the size
of the program as well as the rate of growh in the
program

2:14: 14 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon nentioned that debt service had been a
huge issue in the past.

M. Teal clarified that Co-Chair MacKi nnon was referring to
state assistance for retirement as opposed to general

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



obligation debt service. He said that the actions that the
| egislature had taken in the previous year by paying $3
billion into the retirenent trust and refinancing the debt,
reduced the state assistance to retirenent from what would
have been $1 billion, to $250 mllion. He furthered that,
because of those actions, retirenent assistance was no
| onger a cost driver. He suggested that the $250 mllion
could grow, but would nost likely decline because
heal thcare costs were less than the retirenent actuarial
nodel showed themto be.

2:15:54 PM

Senator Dunl eavy expressed concern about the ||ack of
cont rol over the fluctuating price of oil and the
historically optimstic budgeting practices. He said that
on July 5, 2008, the price of oil hit $153 p/bbl; six
nonths later the price was $40 p/bbl. He shared sone
historical figures regarding the fluctuating price of oil.
He reiterated the inportance of applying conservative
nunbers to future budget projections.

2:18:13 PM

M . Teal referred to Slide 7, "Agency Operations,
Percentage of Agency perations budget (UG Only)". He
noted the roughly 30 percent of agency operations noney
went toward education, approximately 30 percent went to
health and social services - nuch of that was Medicaid. He
expl ai ned that between those two itens was 6 percent of the
budget, and then things dropped off to under 10 percent. He
related that no nuch had changed fromFY 15 to FY 16.

2:19: 25 PM

M. Teal referred to Slide 8, "Agency Operations; Nom na
$". He said that the slide reflected the Senate's operating
budget and that the highlighted cells noted the nost
conparable year. He said that the Senate had unwound 4
years of growh in a single year, which was a large
acconplishnent. He relayed that the level of reduction was
deep and affected every agency.

2:21: 23 PM

M. Teal l|ooked at Slide 9, which illustrated the sane
nunbers as slide 8, wth the addition of FY 09. He did not

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



believe that many nore cuts could have been nmade in the
current operating budget.

2:21:49 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the spreadsheet would
reflect differently if a federal overlay were applied, or
other receipts. She inquired whether departnents were
responding by partnering with other sources, either through
increasing their own receipt authority, or through federa
gover nnent receipts.

M. Teal stated that federal receipts had been fairly
steady, and after 2008 they had stopped increasing. He
continued that other receipts had been relatively constant,
but fees had not been raised in a nunber of years. He
offered to calculate the total funds including the federa
receipts.

2:23: 37 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon appreciated that the information would
be provided at a | ater date.

2:24: 08 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche pointed out the two biggest cost
drivers on the slide were 2010 and 2012. He asked what the
state should use as a netric for an acceptable |evel of
spendi ng per capita.

M. Teal stated that the per capita spending conparisons
were available, but they were difficult to conpare to
Al aska due to great differences in the level of county and
city involvenent. He guessed that the state was |ikely on
t he high side of per capita spending.

2:26:34 PM

Co-Chair Kelly agreed that it would be difficult to conpare
Al aska with other states.

2:27:08 PM

M. Teal referred to a slide not in the packet "Figure
11."Hard to Cut' Itens in the Operating Budget". He
stressed that <cuts to the budget were difficult. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



asserted that for long-term sustainability, the gap between
expenditures and revenue needed to be smaller.

2:28:53 PM
AT EASE

2:29:35 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair MacKi nnon commented that the |egislature had been
exploring the cost drivers for some tinme;, for exanple, SB
64 had highlighted debt service pertaining to school
construction. She asked what the legislature could do to
drive down the total debt service nunber.

M. Teal said that the debt service was roughly $230
mllion (UGF), the debt service reinbursenent was genera
fund dollars and was included in the $230 mllion. He
stated that if school debt reinbursenent were to be
nodi fied, debt service would fall. He believed that DOR did
an excellent job at refinancing and refunding debt, and
keeping the debt service as low as it could be given the
| evel of debt outstanding.

2:31: 36 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the school bond debt
rei rbursenent was $118 mllion.

M. Teal stated he did not have that nunber with him

ROB  CARPENTER, BUDGET  ANALYST, LEQ SLATI VE  FI NANCE
DIVISION, confirmed that it was approximately $118 nillion
[ M. Carpenter gave this information from the staff table
behi nd Co- Chair MacKi nnon]

Co- Chair MacKi nnon concluded that half of the debt service
that the state was carrying was on school construction.

2:33:35 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Teal had any recommendati on
on the remaining $260 mllion in retirenment benefits to be
paid into the system by the state.

M. Teal said that the nunber for the retirenent system
woul d have been slightly over $750 million in 2014. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



stated that the cost of retirenent assistance would be $257
mllion for 2015. He relayed that w thout the action taken
by the legislature in 2014, the retirenent assistance would
have gone over $1 billion in state assistance. He noted the
$500 million in savings would be a reoccurring savings. He
explained that the state was currently |looking toward a
paynent stream that would be between $250 nmillion and $300
mllion over the next several years. He related that in
| ooking at the reduction of retirenent assistance, the
state was picking up the cost for PERS and TRS enpl oyers,
t here were many options.

2:38:32 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked if M. Teal could quantify recurring
future cuts.

M. Teal referred to the $500 mllion cut from the capita
budget from the previous year, leaving only $100 mllion.
He argued that it would be difficult to cut another $500
mllion froma $100 nillion dollar budget, which neant that
future cuts fromthe operating budget would be the only way
to reduce expenditures in the future. He warned that a
capi tal budget below $100 million would nean that the state
woul d not be making use of federal matching funds, and
woul d not pay for deferred mai ntenance or energenci es.

2:41: 07 PM

M. Teal spoke to the cuts to the operating budget. He
di scussed the cuts made to all four of the cost drivers,
and referred back to Slide 3, explaining that even if the
commttee were to cut each category 10 percent each year
through to 2024, budget reserves would still be exhausted
by 2019.

2:43:16 PM

Senat or Meyer asked for the current |evel of reduction.
M. Teal stated it was approximately 9 percent.

Senat or Meyer asked about the oil tax credits, and whether
t hey woul d they woul d sunset in the near future.

M. Teal stated that the tax credits for the current year
total ed approximately $750 mllion and were expected to be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



$250 mllion within the next few years. He said that the
nodel included the reduction to $250 mllion per year tax
credit after 2017.

2:44:45 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the cuts that the Senate had
made to the budget had been considered in the nodel
reflected in the current presentation.

M. Teal answered in the affirmative, and referred to Slide
9. He continued that if 10 percent were to be cut fromthe
K-12 budget each year, K-12 would drop to under $500
mllion, Medicaid would drop from $650 mllion to $250
mllion. He thought that reaching those Ilevels of
expenditure would be difficult.

2:45:35 PM

M. Teal believed that the revenue neasures should be
| ooked at during the interim and carefully considered. He
said that the cuts that the senate had nade were deeper
than he had inmagined that they could be, he did not think
that they were repeatable.

2:46:48 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked M. Teal to conpare the budget from
the previous year to the budget that recently had been
passed by the senate.

2:47:12 PM

M. Teal referred to Slide 3, and illustrated the scenario
on the graph. He further adjusted the graph to depict the
gap between revenue and expenditures to reflect having not
made cuts the current senate version. He said that there
was not a large difference in term of reserve burn even
wth the senate cuts, the reserves would still be up by
2018. He relayed that the difference could be seen in the
long run; the $4 billion gap becane a $3 billion gap.

2:49:23 PM

Co- Chair Kelly understood that in 2016, when the
| egislature returned to craft the FY 17 budget, the
reserves woul d be depl et ed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



M. Teal replied no. He explained that the reserves would
| ast through 2017. He warned that at t hat poi nt
expenditures wuld need to be drastically reduced, or
revenue would need to be enhanced through taxes, or found
in the earnings reserve, or other ways of using permanent
fund earnings.

2:50: 13 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon understood that there would be sone
reserves left in 2017.

M. Teal agreed that the reserves would be end of year
reserves and woul d not carry the state through 2018.

2:51: 16 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked M. Teal to project the nodel
with price sensitivity; what would the nodel |ook Iike at
$80 p/ bbl .

M. Teal adjusted slide 3 to reflect $80, $90 and $100
p/ bbl. He said that things | ooked positive at $110 p/bbl.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche queried the current mnethodol ogy for the
state's budget projections.

M. Teal responded that the state budgeted on the nean, and
was unsure why the departnent had noved away from the high
medium |ow forecast. He thought it was because the nean
was used nore often in budgeting causing people to |ose
interest in the high and the | ow nunbers.

2:53:22 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asserted that cuts needed to be nade
but other options should be explored. He felt that the
problem was understanding how the state could operate
efficiently while still delivering quality essential
servi ces.

2:54: 03 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the committee had exam ned
the many difference cost drivers, addressing one conponent
at a tine.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



2:55:26 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried for the logic behind the three
guarters vote required to use the CBR

2:55: 59 PM

Senator Hoffman interjected that when the constitutional
amendnent was drafted, he was chairman of the House Finance
Commttee. He related that at the tinme the |egislature had
wanted a higher level of agreenent, and it had been the
position of the majority that it should be a two-thirds
vote. He furthered that the republican mnority had not
wanted the nunber to be so low, so in order to get the
votes the three-quarter nunber was instituted.

2:56: 54 PM

M. Teal added that the framers of the anendnent had
intended it be to a "shock absorber" of sorts; the
| egislature could access the CBR with a sinple majority
vote, as long as no nore noney was spent than had been
spent in the prior year. He said that in FY 17, the
| egi sl ature should, wthout a superngjority, be able to
draw as nuch as was needed fromthe CBR as long it does not
exceed the FY 16 budget. He related that the courts
i nvol venent and subsequent ruling had led to a confusing
interpretation and had |ed to the need for t he
superngjority vote because they <counted the earnings
reserve bal ance as avail able to spend.

2:58: 54 PM

Senator A son referred to Slide 6, and asked how nuch
health i nsurance contributed to the cost of benefits.

M. Teal specified that approximately $150 million of the
figure on Slide 6 was health insurance.

2:59:36 PM

Senator O son asked about the rate of inflation from 2006
to 2015.

M. Teal thought health costs had increased nore rapidly,

much nore so than inflation. He said that there were
periods of tinme that healthcare had risen by double digits,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



while inflation was only 3 percent. He stated that

healthcare costs had risen trenendously; the state
currently spent $1200 per enpl oyee, per nont h, on
heal thcare costs. He noted the $350 mllion increase in

roughly 10 years.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT
3:02:49 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:02 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/ 22/ 15 1:36 P. M



